
WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 
MONDAY, AUGUST 7, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. RECOGNITION OF NEW EMPLOYEES:
1. Diane Barnes White, Parks and Recreation Director.
2. Shawna T. Wooten, Accounting Operations Manager.

VII. PRESENTATIONS

1. Chena Cayton, Principal, South Central High School.

VIII. PROCLAMATIONS:
1. Watermelon Festival.

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on any
other matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing section of
the agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public comment on
the item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting, except during the
Public Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are limited to a maximum
of three minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the Council on a single matter. The
Town Council may elect to take no action on the matter addressed by a speaker, may schedule the
matter for further consideration at a future Council meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for
disposition. Copies of the Town Public Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly
Room.

X. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be discussed
by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be removed from the
Consent Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to address an item or ask
questions.
1. Approval of Council Meeting Minutes.
2. Budget Amendment 2023-2024-1
3. Reedy Branch Farms Final Plat.
4. Kpmehra, LLC & Samuel Sanchez Rezoning: Schedule Public Hearing for September 11, 2023.
5. Watermelon Festival Permissions.

a) Parade Permit and Fee Waiver.
b) Traffic and Parking.
c) Park Hour.
d) Signs and Banners.
e) Request for Bathroom Use.
f) Noise Ordinance Exemption and Fee Waiver.

6. Safe Routes School Grant Fund Ordinance (23-R-081).
7. Equipment Purchase Reimbursement Resolution (23-R-081).
8. Approval of Sourcewell Purchasing Cooperative.



XI. OLD BUSINESS:

1. Human Relations Board Appointments.

XII. NEW BUSINESS:
1. Award Contract for Engineering Service: Sewer Master Plan.
2. Award Contract for Engineering Service: Stormwater Asset Inventory Assessment.
3. Chapter 51: Garbage and Refuse § 51.07 Hours and Placement of Cans Amendment.

XIII. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS:
1. Estimate to add additional parking lot across from Public Safety Building. (Councilman Moore).
2. Estimate of costs for paving the Parking area at Winterville Park. (Councilman Moore).
3. Estimate costs for repairs to Walking Trail at Winterville Park. (Councilman Moore).
4. Estimate to repair steps for Library. (Councilman Moore).
5. Estimate for new lights downtown and extend to include the front of Town Hall on both sides of

Railroad Track to Cooper Street. (Councilman Moore).
6. Estimate to have Brick Crosswalks Downtown. (Councilman Moore).
7. Discussion of Traffic Pattern for Street behind Public Safety Building and Town Hall.

(Councilman Moore).
8. Cleanup status along Railroad Tracks. (Councilman Moore).

XIV. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS:

XV. REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS.

XVI. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

• ElectriCities Conference: Monday, August 14 – Wednesday, August 16, 2023 – Myrtle Beach,
SC

• Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, August 15, 2023 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly
Room.

• Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, August 21, 2023 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall
Assembly Room.

• Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 @ 6:30 pm – Operation Center.

• Watermelon Festival: Thursday, August 24 – Sunday, August 27, 2023 - Winterville Recreation
Park.

• Human Relations Board Meeting: Thursday, August 24, 2023 @ 7:00 – Executive Conference
Room.

• Labor Day Holiday - Town Offices Closed: Monday, September 4, 2023.

• Agenda Review Meeting: Thursday, September 7, 2023 @4:00 pm – Town Hall Executive
Conference Room.

• 911 Day of Remembrance: Monday, September 11, 2023

• Regular Town Council Meeting: Monday, September 11, 2023 @ 6:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly
Room.

XVII. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN
MANAGER.

XVIII. ADJOURN.

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 756-2221 ext. 2344 at least forty-eight (48) 
hours prior to the meeting. (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

2



PROCLAMATION 
WINTERVILLE WATERMELON FESTIVAL 

WHEREAS, the first Winterville Watermelon festival was held in 1986 by the Winterville 
Jaycees at the A.G. Cox School and at its conception was the only Watermelon Festival held in 
the State of North Carolina and now there are three; and 

WHEREAS, the festival has moved throughout the Town of Winterville since its 
conception to across from the Riley Cox property; then to downtown Winterville in front of the 
police station; then down to the present day library location; and then to the Winterville 
Recreation Park, where it has called home; and 

WHEREAS, from the first committee to the group became known as the Winterville 
Watermelon Festival Committee, with numerous members who serve on the committee; 
and 

WHEREAS, the dedication and sacrifices made by the Winterville Watermelon 
Festival Committee has placed Winterville, North Carolina on the map as a community 
that is truly "a Slice of the Good Life", and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, I, Richard E. Hines, Mayor and the Town 
Council of the Town of Winterville, recognize the contribution the Watermelon Festival 
Committee has made to the Town of Winterville and are proud to be partners of this great 
festival which is recognized throughout the nation and state of North Carolina. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be 
affixed this 7th day of August 2023. 

Richard E. Hines, Mayor 

Attest: 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

3



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject:  Council Meeting Minutes. 

Action Requested: Approval of Minutes. 

Attachment: Draft Minutes of the Council meetings listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 7/26/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 7/26/2023 ☒ TM: 8/1/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/1/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

❖ June 5, 2023 Budget Public Hearing Minutes; 

❖ June 12,2023 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of minutes. 

 

4



 

Page 1 of 14 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
MONDAY, JUNE 5, 2023 – 6:00 PM 

FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 BUDGET PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES 
 

The Winterville Town Council met for FY 2023-2024 Budget Public Hearing on the above date at 6:00 
PM in the Town Hall Assembly Room, with Mayor Richard E. Hines presiding. The following were 
present: 

 
Richard E. Hines, Mayor 

Johnny Moye, Mayor Pro Tem 
Brandy Harrell, Councilwoman 
Tony P. Moore, Councilman 

Paul A. Rice, Councilman (absent) 
Veronica W. Roberson, Councilwoman 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 
David Moore, Fire Chief 

Cliff McGuffin, Public Works Director 
Robert Sutton, Electric Director 

Jessica Manning, Finance Director 
Evan Johnston, Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer 

Willie Gay, Code Enforcement Officer 
Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Hines called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilwoman Roberson gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hines led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Hines welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Harrell to approve the 
agenda. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Recommended Budget. Town Manager Parker gave the following presentation: 
 

5



 

Page 2 of 14 

 
 

6



 

Page 3 of 14 

 
 

7



 

Page 4 of 14 

 
 

8



 

Page 5 of 14 

 
 

9



 

Page 6 of 14 

 
 

10



 

Page 7 of 14 

 
 

11



 

Page 8 of 14 

 
 

12



 

Page 9 of 14 

 
  

13



 

Page 10 of 14 

Mayor Hines declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak.  
 
Brandon Smith submitted the following comment and information: 
 

 
 

14



 

Page 11 of 14 

 

15



 

Page 12 of 14 

 

16



 

Page 13 of 14 

 

17



 

Page 14 of 14 

No other comments were received or made. Mayor Hines asked for any further comments. Hearing 
none, he declared the public hearing closed. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Harrell to adjourn the 
meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Meeting adjourned at 6:06 pm. 
 

Adopted this the 7th day of August 2023. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

18



 

Page 1 of 32 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
MONDAY, JUNE 12, 2023 – 6:00 PM 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 6:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Richard E. Hines presiding. The following were present: 

 
Richard E. Hines, Mayor 

Johnny Moye, Mayor Pro Tem 
Brandy Harrell, Councilwoman 

Tony P. Moore, Councilman (excused absence) 
Paul A. Rice, Councilman 

Veronica W. Roberson, Councilwoman 
Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Cliff McGuffin, Public Works Director 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Jessica Manning, Finance Director 

Evan Johnston, Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer and Parks and Recreation Director 
Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Hines called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilwoman Harrell gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hines led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Hines welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Manager Parker noted the corrections to the Agenda. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Harrell and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Moye to the corrected 
agenda. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS: Town Clerk Harvey presented the Proclamations. 
  

19



 

Page 2 of 32 

1. Juneteenth Freedom Day. 

 
 

20



 

Page 3 of 32 

2. Flag Day. 

 
  

21



 

Page 4 of 32 

3. Tourette Syndrome Awareness Month. 

 
  

22



 

Page 5 of 32 

4. National League of Cities – Small Cities Month. 

 
  

23



 

Page 6 of 32 

5. Honoring Caleb Gavin Moore. 

 
 

24



 

Page 7 of 32 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
1. Water Shortage Response Plan. 
 
Public Works Director McGuffin presented the Water Shortage Response Plan (WSRP) for the Town 
that is required to be updated every 5 years by DEQ. This plan covers all measures to be taken in the 
event water supply sources are inadequate to meet current demands for potable water. This plan 
outlines Notification, Levels of Response, Triggers, Enforcement, Public Comment, Variance Protocols, 
Effectiveness and Revisions. This plan is the same plan that has been in place across the board and 
nothing in the plan changed but the date and contact information. 
 
Mayor Hines declared the public hearing open and asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the 
Water Shortage Response Plan. No one spoke. Mayor Hines asked if anyone would like to speak in 
opposition of the Water Shortage Response Plan. No one spoke. Mayor Hines asked for any further 
discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Harrell to approve the 
Water Shortage Response Plan. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 

 

25



 

Page 8 of 32 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Henry Hostetler spoke for retaining the Tennis courts in Town and not converting them to Pickle Ball 
courts. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:` 
 
Items included in the Consent Agenda: 
 

1. Final Budget Amendment: 2022-2023-8. 

2. Brookfield Section 4, Phase 1 – Final Plat. 

3. Randy Bowers – Final Plat. 

4. Power Cost Adjustment. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Moye to approve 
the consent agenda Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
1. NCDOT Speed Limit Resolutions. 
 
Assistant Town Manager Bowers presented resolutions are a result of action taken at Budget Session 
#1. This will formalize the action of Council for submission to NCDOT. Resolutions: 23-R-062 for Ange 
Street and 23-R-063 for Mill Street. Ange Street is straight forward. Mill Street is somewhat convoluted. 
Council and Staff discussed both with the following conclusions. 
 

26



 

Page 9 of 32 

 
 

Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilwoman Harrell to approve 
Resolution 23-R-062 for Ange Street. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0.  
 

27



 

Page 10 of 32 

 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Harrell and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to not 
approve or move forward with Resolution 23-R-063 for Mill Street. Motion carried unanimously, 
4-0. 
 
  

28



 

Page 11 of 32 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 
1. 2023-2024 Fiscal Year Budget Ordinance. 
 
Town Manager Parker and Assistant Town Manager Bowers presented the attached Draft Budget 
Ordinance for the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year. The Budget Ordinance reflects the totals of the draft 
balanced budget as presented and discussed at the Budget Public Hearing held on Monday, June 5, 
2023. 
 

 
 

29



 

Page 12 of 32 

 
 

30



 

Page 13 of 32 

 
 

31



 

Page 14 of 32 

 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Rice to approve the 
2023-2024 Fiscal Year Budget Ordinance Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
2. Street Resurface Project – Award of Contract. 
 
Assistant Town Manager Bowers noted that the Town is looking to repair several bad streets in the 
downtown area. Advertisement for the project was posted in The Daily Reflector on May 20, 2023. Bids 
were received on June 6, 2023. We were able to obtain 3 bids from the following: Tripp Brothers Inc., 
Lanier Construction, and Barnhill Construction. The lowest responsible bidder was Tripp Brothers Inc. 
They provided a base bid of $213,993.00, an alternate bid of $5,950.50 for sections of Worthington 
Street and a 2nd Alternate bid for Drexel Lane in the amount of $119,989.50. Target areas are 
Worthington Street and Railroad Street intersection. Depot Street, Railroad Street between Cooper 
Street and Blount Street. Drexel Lane is also included in this project if funds are available. The Wooten 
Company has certified the bid tab. This bid was submitted on a per unit basis. This will allow for other 
improvements to be made near the railroad track while we have the permits paid for with CSX. Please 
note that the start date will depend on CSX and when they will allow us to work in their right of way. 

32



 

Page 15 of 32 

 

 
 

33



 

Page 16 of 32 

 
 

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Harrell to approve the 
lowest responsible bidder, Tripp Brothers Inc. with a base bid of $213,993.00, an alternate bid of 
$5,950.50 for sections of Worthington Street and a 2nd alternate bid for Drexel Lane in the 
amount of $119,989.50 for a total project cost is $339,933. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
  

34



 

Page 17 of 32 

3. Wooten Company General Services Contract, Task Order 41 Contract. 
 
Assistant Town Manager Bowers presented the attached General Services Contract for The Wooten 
Company. This is Task Order #41 and is for Fiscal Year 2023-2024. The value of the contract is 
$47,500. This is an increase of $12,500 over last year. This is the result of the increased growth, and 
demand for this services for The Wooten Company to assist the Town with the multitude of projects we 
have underway 
 

 

35



 

Page 18 of 32 

 

 
 

36



 

Page 19 of 32 

 
 

37



 

Page 20 of 32 

 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Moye to approve 
the General Services Contract with The Wooten Company, Task Order #41 for Fiscal Year 2023-
2024 at a value of $47,500. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
  

38



 

Page 21 of 32 

4. Sheppard Memorial Library Board Appointment. 
 
Town Manager Parker noted that the Sheppard Memorial Library Board and Greenville City Council 
approved the amended membership on May 8, 2023 see below. The term will be a three-year term and 
will run until October 2026. Staff requests that Council reaffirm the appointment of Mayor Pro Tem 
Johnny Moye. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Rice to appoint Mayor 
Pro Tem Moye to the Sheppard Memorial Library Board. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 

 
 

39



 

Page 22 of 32 

 
 

40



 

Page 23 of 32 

 
 

41



 

Page 24 of 32 

 
 

42



 

Page 25 of 32 

 
 

43



 

Page 26 of 32 

 
 

44



 

Page 27 of 32 

 
  

45



 

Page 28 of 32 

5. Appointments to Volunteer Advisory Boards: 
 

Board of Adjustment 

 
Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director presented the following: 
 

Reappointments: 

1. Brian Miller: 

Reappoint Brian Miller to a three year term that will expire on June 30, 2026.  

2. Garrett Killian: 

Move Garrett Killian to a regular member’s seat (rather than the alternative seat) for a three-

year term that will expire on June 30, 2026. 

 

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to reappoint 
Brian Miller and Garrett Killian to regular member seats on the Board of Adjustment. Motion 
carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 

Appointment: 

One of the following applicants on file to fill the vacant (In-Town) alternate seat that is set to expire June 

30, 2026. Listed in order of their board preference and dates received: 

1. Devin Johnson-Listed Board of Adjustment as his first choice. Application received on 2/15/23. 

2. Dennis Bottoms- Listed Board of Adjustment as his third choice. Application received on 

1/29/22. 

3. Domini Cunningham- Listed Board of Adjustment as his fourth choice. Application received on 

12/19/22. 

4. Jonathan Powell- Listed Board of Adjustment as his fourth choice. Application received on 

3/10/23 

 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to appoint 
Devin Johnson to fill the vacant (In-Town) alternate seat on the Board of Adjustment. Motion 
carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Planning and Zoning Board 

 
Planning and Economic Development Director Penn spoke with Anthony Klontz on May 25, 2023 and 
learned that his current work schedule conflicts with the Planning and Zoning Board Meeting dates and 
has asked to be removed from the board. This opens a Town Limits seat that will expire on June 30, 
2025. Replace Mr. Anthony Klontz’ s seat with one of the following applications that the Town of 
Winterville has on file. The following list is in order of board preference and dates received: 

1. Dr. Glen E. Johnson- Selected the P&Z board as his only interest. Applied on 5/31/2020. 

2. Anthony Bell- Selected the P&Z board as his only interest. Applied on 11/9/2021. 

3. Jason Bunch- Selected the P&Z board as his only interest. Applied on 11/29/2022. 

4. Corbett Harris- Selected the P&Z board as his only interest. Applied on 11/29/2022. 

5. Domini Cunningham- Selected the P&Z board as his first choice. Applied on 12/19/2022. 

6. Dennis Bottoms- Selected the P&Z Board as his second choice. Applied on 1/29/2022. 

7. Jonathan Powell- Selected the P&Z Board as his second choice. Applied on 3/10/2023. 

8. Devin Johnson- Selected the P&Z Board as his fifth/last choice. Applied on 1/29/2022 
 

46



 

Page 29 of 32 

Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Rice to appoint Domini 
Cunningham to fill the Town Limits seat that will expire on June 30, 2025. Motion carried 
unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 

 
Director of Parks and Recreation Johnston noted that the Recreation Advisory Board (RAB) is 

composed of seven (7) Resident members, two (2) Non-Resident (ETJ) members, and one (1) 

Alternate member that may be a resident or non-resident. The Recreation Advisory Board (RAB) has 

three (3) members whose term expiration is June 30, 2023 and have requested to be reappointed to an 

additional term. Following is list of said members and their membership type: Victoria Hawkins 

(Resident), John Relford (Resident), and Johnny Fleming (Resident). Staff recommends that all current 

members, as listed above, be appointed to an additional two (2) year term on the Recreation Advisory 

Board.  

 

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to reappoint 
Victoria Hawkins (Resident), John Relford (Resident), and Johnny Fleming (Resident) to an 
additional two (2) year term to the Recreation Advisory Board Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 

The Recreation Advisory Board (RAB) currently has one (1) resident vacancy. Staff recommends 

appointing current RAB Alternate and Winterville resident Rashana Carmon to fill the vacant RAB 

resident position. 

 

Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilwoman Harrell to appoint 
Rashana Carmon to fill the vacant resident two (2) year term to the Recreation Advisory Board. 
Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 

Appointing Ms. Carmon to the resident position results in one (1) vacant RAB alternate position. There 

are currently eight (8) applications on file in which applicant indicated RAB as either their sole interest 

or first preference. These applicants, all of whom are Town residents, are as follows (listed in order or 

receipt): 

• Katrina Jones; John Powell; Melanie Grotjan Miller; Domini Cunningham; Stephanie Ham; Dennis 
Bottoms; Devin Micah Johnson; Johnathan Powell. Staff recommends appointing one (1) of the 
aforementioned individuals to the now vacant RAB alternate position. 

 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to appoint 
Katrina Jones to fill the vacant RAB alternate resident two (2) year term to the Recreation 
Advisory Board. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Human Relations Board 

 
Town Manager Parks noted that there are three (3) appointments that need to be made to the 
Winterville Human Relations Board. Please see the attached document which will denote which 
positions need to be filled and by whom. 
 

47



 

Page 30 of 32 

 
 
Council and Staff discussed the method of how members are appointed to the Board. A change in the 
by-laws on the method of appointing members was suggested. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Moye to change 
method effective September 2023 of nominating Members to the Human Relations Board like all 
other Voluntary boards. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Proposed Amendment to be brought to Council at the August meeting for consideration. 

48



 

Page 31 of 32 

6. School Resource Officer Agreement with Pitt County Schools 
 
Chief of Police Willhite noted that Pitt County Schools has requested that the Town of Winterville 
continue the SRO contract to supply three (3) School Resource Officers (SROs) in the county schools 
in our jurisdiction. The county has proposed a one year contract which will pay the officers salary and 
benefits ($247,942.97) and the Town of Winterville is responsible for the equipment, uniforms, vehicle 
and training. These officers will be assigned to A.G. Cox Middle School, W.H. Robinson Elementary 
School, and Creekside Elementary School. The County will make 12 monthly installments to the Town 
to reimburse the salary and benefits cost. As with other SRO’s throughout the county, this contract is 
renewed annually to address changes in salary or details. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Rice to approve the 
School Resource Officer Agreement with Pitt County Schools. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 

• Mural: Dollar General is going to scrap the proposed mural and go with a colorful flowery 
mural. Council and Staff discussed moving forward. 

• Opioid Workshop: Mayor attended and discussed the funds and awareness that had 
transpired. Council and Staff discussed how this could help the Town. 

• Mount Shiloh through Mr. Jones and the efforts they are making with the Community Garden. 

• Update on Rule 20 concerning Board vacancies. Not a clear way to proceed. Council discussed in 
depth the many different options that the Rule could take. 

 
Motion made by Councilman Rice and seconded by Councilwoman Harrell to table the 
discussion on Rule 20. Motion tied, 2-2. Councilwoman Harrell and Councilman Rice voted in 
favor. Mayor Pro Tem Moye and Councilwoman Roberson opposed. Mayor voted in favor of the 
motion to Table the discussion. Motion carried, 3-2. 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: 
 
Town Manager Parker suggested that the August Town Council meeting be moved due to the conflict 
with the ElectriCities Conference. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilwoman Harrell to move the 
August Council meeting to August 7, 2023 at 6:00 pm. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Town Clerk Harvey gave the following announcements: 

• Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Tuesday, June 13, 2023 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly 
Room. NOTE DATE CHANGE. 

• Juneteenth Freedom Day Holiday - Town Offices Closed: Monday, June 19, 2023 

• Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, June 20, 2023 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly Room. 
(Cancelled) 

• Human Relations Board Meeting: Thursday, June 22, 2023 @ 7:00 – Executive Conference Room. 
(Cancelled) 

• Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, June 27, 2023 @ 6:30 pm – Operation Center. 

• Independence Day Holiday - Town Offices Closed: Tuesday, July 4, 2023. 

• Agenda Review Meeting: Thursday, July 6, 2023 @4:00 pm – Town Hall Executive Conference 
Room. (Cancelled) 

• Regular Town Council Meeting: Monday, July 10, 2023 @ 6:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly Room. 
(Cancelled) 

 

49



 

Page 32 of 32 

REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN 
MANAGER: 
 
Attorney Lassiter: Closed Session tonight. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Moye: Resident had asked about speed-bumps. Status forthcoming. 
 
Mayor Hines: Wished Police Chief Willhite well in his future endeavors. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Moye to go out of 
Open Session and into Closed Session [(a) (3) To consult with Attorney and (a) (5) Potential 
Acquisition of Real Property]. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Entered into Closed Session at 
7:31pm. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Rice to return to Open 
Session. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Rice and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Moye to authorize Town 
Attorney Lassiter to move forward with settlement of three Worthington eminent domain cases 
offering them $12,000 and if they did not accept that, to offer them $12,500. Motion carried, 3-1, 
Councilwoman Roberson opposed. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Moye and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to adjourn the 
meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 4-0. Meeting adjourned at 8:29 pm. 
 

Adopted this the 7th day of August 2023. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

50



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Budget Amendment 2023-2024-1 

Action Requested: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

Attachment: Budget Amendment 2023-2024-1. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager Date: 8/1/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/1/2023 ☒ TM: 8/1/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/1/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

The first item addressed in this budget amendment is the annual roll over of purchase orders. In order for us 

to complete the purchases that the Town is obligated to through the issuance of purchase orders, the budget 

must be amended. If not, the purchases that were started in last year’s meeting will have to be funded out of 

the current year’s budget. This will greatly reduce the amount of funds in each operation budget. 

The second item included is the addition of funds to cover this year’s municipal election. That cost is $25,000 

and will be covered with fund balance. 

The third item addresses funds need to cover the cost of the Fire Department Master Plan. This was 

budgeted in last year’s budget and needed to be rolled over to this FY. The funds reverted to fund balance 

as of 6-30-2023. The budgeted amount is $30,000 

The fourth item addresses the need for two additional pieces of equipment. They are a small tractor with a 

bucket and loader that can be used in yards without damaging personal property. Staff also needed a new 

commercial mower to take care of the various town properties. The Town has also been notified that the PW 

Truck that we budgeted for is no longer available. In order to get a truck that is available we will need an 

additional $15,000. This will be included with our debt funding in the amount of $83,000 for all pieces of 

equipment. 

The fifth item address the town’s required contribution to the Safe Routes to School Grant. Our contribution 

is $33,497. 

The final item covers the purchase of the land located on Chapman Street to Purchase the land the Town 

will need $422,500 to cover the cost the land, survey, and closing cost. 

Budgetary Impact: Total budget amendment is an increase in the amount $3,545,062 across all funds. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of Budget Amendment 2023-2024-1. 

 

51



 

SECTION 1. Revenues are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Fund Account Increase Decrease

Fund Balance 10 3831 971,717.00$         

Debt Service Proceeds 10 3828 33,000.00$           

Fund Balance 15 3831 24,533.00$           

Fund Balance 16 3831 744,500.00$         

Grant Proceeds 24 3415 167,485.00$         

Fund Balance 60 3831 1,341,692.00$     

Fund Balance 61 3831 85,790.00$           

Fund Balance 62 3831 117,113.00$         

Debt Service Proceeds 63 3828 50,000.00$           

Fund Balance 63 3831 9,232.00$             

Total 3,545,062.00$     -$          

SECTION 2. Appropriations are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Account Department Fund Increase Decrease

Travel Meals and Lodging 10-4110-00-4222 Town Council General 5,900.00$             

Travel Meals and Lodging 10-4120-00-4222 Administration General 1,180.00$             

Contracted Services 10-4120-00-4233 Administration General 25,000.00$           

Capital Outlay 10-4120-00-7150 Administration General 31,195.00$           

Contracted Services 10-4120-01-4233 Finance General 5,107.00$             

Contracted Services 10-4120-02-4233 Inspections General 12,050.00$           

Contracted Services 10-4120-04-4233 Information Tech General 191,913.00$         

Maint & Repair of Equipment 10-4260-00-4225 Public Buildings General 1,691.00$             

Supplies and Materials 10-4260-00-4230 Public Buildings General 5,161.00$             

Contracted Services 10-4260-00-4233 Public Buildings General 4,506.00$             

Maint & Repair of Facility 10-4260-00-4239 Public Buildings General 18,977.00$           

New Equipment 10-4260-00-4274 Public Buildings General 19,452.00$           

Capital Outlay 10-4260-00-7150 Public Buildings General 14,250.00$           

Capital Outlay 10-4260-00-7151 Public Buildings General 422,500.00$         

Contracted Services 10-4260-02-4233 Grounds and Maint General 1,333.00$             

Travel Meals and Lodging 10-4310-00-4222 Police General 1,390.00$             

Maint & Repair of Vehicles 10-4310-00-4226 Police General 2,384.00$             

Professional Development 10-4320-00-4221 Fire General 2,750.00$             

Travel Meals and Lodging 10-4320-00-4222 Fire General 420.00$                

Maint & Repair of Vehicles 10-4320-00-4226 Fire General 4,089.00$             

Uniforms and Shoes 10-4320-00-4231 Fire General 5,869.00$             

Contracted Services 10-4320-00-4233 Fire General 660.00$                

Contracted Services 10-4320-00-4233 Fire General 30,000.00$           

Dues and Subscriptions 10-4320-00-4234 Fire General 514.00$                

New Equipment 10-4320-00-4274 Fire General 12,080.00$           

Capital Outlay 10-4510-02-7149 Public Works - Other General 15,000.00$           

Capital Outlay 10-4510-02-7150 Public Works - Other General 83,140.00$           

Capital Outlay 10-4510-02-7150 Public Works - Other General 18,000.00$           

Contracted Services 10-4710-00-4233 Sanitation General 33,292.00$           

Town Code Codification 10-9500-00-5113 Non-Departmental General 900.00$                

Economic Development 10-9500-00-5135 Non-Departmental General 517.00$                

Contribution to Grant Fund 10-9500-00-9118 Non-Departmental General 33,497.00$           

Maint & Repair of Facility 15-6010-00-4239 Recreation Recreation 8,900.00$             

New Equipment 15-6010-00-4274 Recreation Recreation 6,395.00$             

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Winterville, that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the 

fiscal year ending June 30, 2024:

BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 2023-2024-1

Page 1

52



Football 15-6010-00-4280 Recreation Recreation 7,179.00$             

Capital Outlay 15-6010-00-7150 Recreation Recreation 2,059.00$             

Engineering 16-4510-00-4232 Powell Bill Powell Bill 44,500.00$           

Paving and Resurfacing 16-4510-00-4270 Powell Bill Powell Bill 700,000.00$         

Fund to be distributed based  on Grant Budget 24-0000-00-0000 SRTS Grant Fund SRTS Grant Fund 167,485.00$         

Professional Development 60-7110-00-4221 Electric Fund Electric Fund 3,196.00$             

Travel Meals and Lodging 60-7110-00-4222 Electric Fund Electric Fund 1,180.00$             

Maint & Repair of Equipment 60-7110-00-4225 Electric Fund Electric Fund 1,496.00$             

Supplies and Materials 60-7110-00-4230 Electric Fund Electric Fund 5,400.00$             

Engineering 60-7110-00-4232 Electric Fund Electric Fund 119,222.00$         

Maint & Repair of Facility 60-7110-00-4293 Electric Fund Electric Fund 15,800.00$           

Customer Bill Prepreation 60-7110-00-4301 Electric Fund Electric Fund 3,684.00$             

New Equipment 60-7110-22-4274 Electric Fund Electric Fund 13,900.00$           

Electric Replacement Meters 60-7110-22-4304 Electric Fund Electric Fund 1,533.00$             

New Electric Meters 60-7110-22-4305 Electric Fund Electric Fund 2,443.00$             

Water Replacement Meters 60-7110-22-4306 Electric Fund Electric Fund 58,120.00$           

Capital Outlay 60-8010-00-7150 Electric Fund Electric Fund 1,115,718.00$     

Supplies and Materials 61-7210-00-4230 Water Fund Water Fund 1,146.00$             

Customer Bill Prepreation 61-7210-00-4301 Water Fund Water Fund 184.00$                

Purchase for Resale 61-7230-00-4302 Water Fund Water Fund 84,460.00$           

Engineering 62-7320-20-4232 Sewer Fund Sewer Fund 2,168.00$             

Customer Bill Prepreation 62-7320-20-4301 Sewer Fund Sewer Fund 184.00$                

Capital Outlay 62-7320-20-7150 Sewer Fund Sewer Fund 25,700.00$           

Capital Outlay 62-8010-00-7150 Sewer Fund Sewer Fund 89,061.00$           

Contracted Services 63-7420-00-4233 Storm Water Fund Storm Water Fund 9,232.00$             

Capital Outlay 63-7420-00-7150 50,000.00$           

Total

Adopted the 7th day of August 2023. 3,545,062.00$     -             

Richard E. Hines, Mayor

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk

Page 2

53



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Reedy Branch Farms Final Plat. 

Action Requested: Approval of Final Plat. 

Attachment: Final Plat Map. 

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director Date: 7/26/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/1/2023 ☒ TM: 8/1/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/1/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Stroud Engineering. 

Location: 6178 Reedy Branch Road- Roughly 1,800’ east of Reedy Branch Rd and Earnest Lofton Rd. 

Parcel Number: 86745. 

Site Data: 15.21 acres. 

Current Zoning District: Agricultural- Residential (AR). 

Proposed Lot Count: 4 

 

(1) *Note: A Preliminary Plat Mirroring this Final Plat was approved at the May 8th Council Meeting. July 

24th Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended approval of the final plat. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Straff recommends approval of the Final Plat. 

 

54



55



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023 

Presenter: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Kpmehra & Samuel Sanchez – Rezoning Request (Parcels 24507, 42578, 50256). 

Action Requested: Schedule Public Hearing on the Rezoning Request for September 11, 2023. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, and Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Planning and Economic Development Director Date: 7/26/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/1/2023 ☒ TM: 8/1/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/1/2023 

Supporting Documentation 
Applicant: Samuel Sanchez & Sanjay Mehra (Owners of the properties). 

Location: Northeastern Corner of Highway 11 and Vernon White Road - 139 Vernon White Road, 4319 

Winterville Parkway. 

Parcel Numbers: 24507, 42578, & 50256.  

Site Data: 12.46 acres. 

Current Zoning District: Agricultural Residential (AR). 

Proposed Zoning District: General Business (GB).  

❖ For the P&Z Meeting, adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning request on 

May 25, 2023. 

❖ Notification was posted on the site on May 23, 2023. 

❖ Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval of the rezoning request unanimously June 13, 

2023. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Schedule Public Hearing on the Rezoning Request for September 11, 2023. 

 

56



57



58



59



60



NCSR 1130 - Vernon White Road

Old N
C H

w
y 11

N
C H

w
y 11 - W

interville Pkw
y

NCSR 1128 - Davenport Farm Road

Beacon Drive

W
aterford Dr.

PARCEL# 24507
EXISTING ZONING = AR

PROPOSED ZONING = GB
8.43± AC

PARCEL# 42578
EXISTING ZONING = AR

PROPOSED ZONING = GB
3.0± AC

PARCEL# 50256

EXISTIN
G ZON

IN
G = AR

PROPOSED ZON
IN

G = GB

1.03± AC

Vicinity Map
SCALE: 1" = 2000'

0 100'50'100'

1 inch =          ft100SCALE

Notes:                                                                       
1. AREA DETERMINED BY COORDINATES.

2. THIS MAP WAS PREPARED FOR REZONING PURPOSES ONLY AND IS
NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY OF THE PROPERTIES SHOWN HEREON.

3. BOUNDARY INFORMATION SHOWN HEREON WAS DRAWN FROM
RECORDED MAPS AND DEEDS AND INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE
PITT COUNY OPIS WEBSITE AND DOES NOT  REPRESENT AN ACTUAL
FIELD SURVEY BY THIS FIRM.

C-1016
Owner                 
KPMEHRA, LLC
738 LEXINGTON DRIVE
WINTERVILLE, NC  27834

SITE
VERNON WHITE RD.

W. FIRE TOWER RD.

RE
ED

Y 
BR

AN
CH

 R
D.

NC
 H

W
Y 

11

DAVENPORT FARM RD.

M
ILL ST.

FORLINES RD.

W. MAIN ST.NC HWY 903

N
. R

AI
LR

O
AD

 S
T.

SHEETSCALE
1 of 11" = 100' 

DATE
5-15-2023

TOWN OF WINTERVILE, PITT COUNTY, NC

REZONING MAP FOR
KPMEHRA, LLC & SAMUAL SANCHEZ

PITT COUNTY PARCEL NO. 24507, 42578 & 50256

NC License: P-1199

ENGINEERS & PLANNERS

2755-B Charles Blvd.
Greenville, NC  27858
(252) 558-0888

www.arkconsultinggroup.com

References:  
D.B. 4152, PG. 289
D.B. 3983, PG. 591
M.B. 50, PG. 129
M.B. 55, PG. 106
M.B. 311, PG. 170

BEACON DR.

SAMUEL SANCHEZ &
LORENA SANCHEZ
4319 WINTERVILLE PARKWAY
WINTERVILLE, NC  28590

TOTAL AREA TO BE
REZONED = 12.46± AC

5/15/2023
61



REZONING MAP 
 

FOR 
 

KPMEHRA, LLC & SAMUEL SANCHEZ 
PITT COUNTY PARCEL NOS. 24507, 42578, & 50256 

 
 Lying and being in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina lying East of 
NC Hwy 11 and being bounded on the South by NCSR 1130 (Vernon White Road) and 
beginning at NCGS Monument “Winterville” located in the western right- of way of NC 
Hwy 11 thence North 18-40-54 East 2,813.12 feet to NCGS Monument “Reedy” located 
at the intersection of NC Hwy 11 and NCSR 1128 (Davenport Farm Road); thence South 
83-48-36 East 214.43 feet to an existing concrete monument located in the eastern right 
of way of NC Hwy 11, the true POINT OF BEGINNING. From said POINT OF 
BEGINNING and following the eastern right of way of NC Hwy 11 North 01-46-26 West 
99.66 feet to an existing concrete monument; thence following the eastern right of way of 
NC Hwy 11 North 01-38-15 West 173.20 feet to an existing iron pipe, thence following the 
eastern right of way of NC Hwy 11 North 01-47-07 West, 283 feet to a point in the center 
of a ditch; thence leaving the right of way of NC Hwy 11 and with the center of said ditch 
South 71-01-27 East 80.68 feet; thence North 77-35-21 East 396.49 feet; thence North 
78-45-02 East 169.47 feet; thence North 63-53-50 East 102.14 feet; thence North 84-21-
53' East 341.98 feet to a comer; thence South 23-39-47 West 63.34 feet; thence South 
08-55-07 West 125.35 feet to a comer; thence South 80-55-05 West 336.34 feet to an 
existing iron pipe, a comer; thence South 06-49-15 West 190.31 feet to an existing iron 
pipe, a comer; thence South 83-09-23 East 260.44 feet to a comer; thence South 22-47-
20 West 89.65 feet to an existing iron pipe; thence 06-44-45 West 113.98 feet to an 
existing iron pipe, a comer; thence North 83-09-15 West 210.79 feet to an existing iron 
pipe, a comer; thence South 06-49-34 West 206.73 to an existing iron pipe located in the 
northern right of way of NCSR 1130 (Vernon White Road), a comer; thence following the 
northern right of way of NCSR 1130 (Vernon White Road) North 83-07-43 West 390.70 
feet to an existing concrete marker located in the northern right of way of NCSR 1130 
(Vernon White Road); thence following the northern right of way of NCSR 1130 (Vernon 
White Road) North 83-21-51 West 202,61 feet to an existing concrete marker located in 
the northern right of way of NCSR 1130 (Vernon White Road), a comer; thence North 43-
29- 23 West 47.69 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 12.46 +/- acres. 
 
 

62



 

1 
Staff Report 

 

 Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Samuel Sanchez & Sanjay Mehra (Kpmehra LLC).- Owners  

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUESTED ZONING DISTRICT General Business (GB)  

CURRENT ZONING DISTRICT Agricultural Residential (AR)  

LOCATION North-Eastern Corner of Highway 11 and Vernon White Road: 139 
Vernon White Road & 4319 Winterville Parkway. 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 24507, 42578, & 50256. 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on May 25, 2023.  Notification was posted on site on May 
23, 2023.  18 properties were mailed notification.   

TRACT SIZE 12.46 +/- acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Pine Trees and other evergreen trees and shrubs dominate the 
property.  

 
 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Residential & Bed and Breakfast. 

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N General Business (GB) Commercial-Retail, service, 
office. 

 W General Business (GB)- Across 
from Highway 11.  

Commercial- Restaurants, gas 
stations, retail, automotive 
shop. 

E General Business (GB)/ Office 
and Institutional (O&I), and 
Agricultural-Residential (AR).  

 Commercial- Aquaventure: 
Service/Office Use. Residential- 
three single family homes.  

S General Business (GB), 
Agricultural-Residential (AR), 
and R-20.  

Single Family Residential 
dominates the southern portion 
of this property, on the other 
side of Vernon White Road. 
Vacant Commercial site is 
located at the ‘triangle’ at 
Vernon White Road, Old NC 11, 
and Highway 11.    

63



 

2 
Staff Report 

 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
AR  

 
GB 

MAX DENSITY 2 per acre (Residential Units) NA.  

 
TYPICAL USES 

AR - Low-density residential and 
agricultural uses; where urban 
development is expected.  
 

Commercial uses: Business, 
Professional, Office, and Service 
Uses. Retail and Wholesale 
Uses.   

 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS N/A 

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit. 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Subdivision plan or Construction Drawings will be 
required depending on proposed use in the 
future.  

**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district.

 
 

 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 

N Bufferyard would likely not be required due to 
the existing non-residential use.   

W Street Vegetation would be required per the 
Winterville Zoning Ordinance.  

E A bufferyard would be required against adjacent 
residential properties.  

S A bufferyard would be required against adjacent 
residential properties.  

 

64



 

3 
Staff Report 

 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION NC Highway 11/Winterville Parkway – NCDOT 
Road- Classified as a Boulevard/Major 
Thoroughfare.  
 
Vernon White Road – NCDOT Road- Classified as 
a Minor Thoroughfare.  
 
Old NC 11/Mill St. – NCDOT Road- Classified as a 
Minor Thoroughfare.  

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS- 2021 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

NC Highway 11– 35,000 
Vernon White Road – 5,400 
Mill Street - 8700 

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS TBD 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY TBD 

OTHER N/A 

 
 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed General Business (GB) zoning districts would allow land uses that are 
compatible with the general character of the area.   
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as a Neighborhood Center character 

area and a Regional Center character area. The requested GB zoning district is 

consistent with this character area as defined by the future land use designation.  

 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Neighborhood Center:   

• General Character: These centers have small-scale retail, restaurants and offices 

that are local landmarks and serve the surrounding neighborhoods. Other, more 

high intensity land uses may be attracted to these activity areas. Residential uses 

65



 

4 
Staff Report 

could include patio homes, attached units and some multi-family structures. 

• Potential Zoning Districts: GB, NC, O&I, IC, Possibly C-B, R-8, R-6 or M-R.  

• Uses: Neighborhood-serving commercial uses (grocery store, retail/service, 

restaurant, etc.) serve as the anchor of this land use type, with multi-family and 

other residential mixed in and supporting the commercial center. 

 

Regional Center:   

• General Character: These larger, auto-oriented commercial areas serve a regional 

market, and are high-intensity shopping centers. With good design, they can 

provide a pleasant outdoor and indoor shopping experience that compliments the 

surrounding community as a commercial/retail/service activity center.  

• Potential Zoning Districts: GB, Possibly NC, O&I, IC, or M-R.  

• Uses: Commercial uses of a regional nature, including big box stores, chain 

restaurants, and other highway-oriented uses. Hotels and multi-family uses could 

also be appropriate. 

 

 

(Land Use) Policy 1:  Encourage a balanced tax base while managing 
growth:   
 

Strategy 1.1:  Utilize the Future Land Use Map and character areas when 
considering land use decisions. 
 
Strategy1.2: Encourage non-residential growth in the form of retail 
restaurants, professional offices and industrial development in areas 
designated as such on the Future Land Use Map.  

 
 

 
(Economic Development) Policy 1:  Continue to Implement Previous Plans. 

 
Strategy 1.3:  Emphasize retail, office, light industrial and other commercial 
development especially along Winterville Parkway and other appropriate 
areas.  
 

(Economic Development) Policy 2:  Improve Self-Sufficiency and Reduce 
Retail Leakage.  
 

Strategy 2.1:  Support Winterville’s transformation from a bedroom 
community into a neighboring community of Greenville.  
 
Strategy 2.2:  Discourage rezonings to residential zoning districts in high 
visibility corners with good access and parcels within Office & Employment 

66



 

5 
Staff Report 

Future Land use areas.   
 

(Economic Development) Policy 6:  Focus on business recruitment, 
expansion and retention.  
 

 Strategy 6.2:  Encourage and support local businesses, especially in 
expansion efforts.   

 
 

 

  

 

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
 
Staff Analysis 
The 12.46-acre properties are currently underutilized for their locations.  The single-family 
residential home and the Bed and Breakfast (permitted for up to 6 bedrooms) have access 
and frontage onto Highway 11, a boulevard classified street with one of the highest traffic 
counts and visibility in the Winterville/Greenville Metro.  It’s location has high commercial 
value and is prime to improve Winterville’s self-sufficiency, by encouraging commercial 
development.   
 
Though there is adjacent single-family residential, the Zoning Ordinance’s bufferyard 
requirements were established to protect and preserve the appearance, character and value 
of adjacent properties with incompatible land uses and intensities. Furthermore, Section 
154.21 of the Subdivision Ordinance expressly prohibits direct residential driveway access 
onto Major Thoroughfares and thus would not allow this design, if it were proposed today.  
 
The General Business (GB) rezoning request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
Zoning Ordinance, the  Future Land Use Plan, and is compatible with the existing 
development and trends in the surrounding area.  
 
 
Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request for the 12.46 acres from AR 

to General Business (GB). 

67



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023 

Presenter: Christopher L. Williams, Chief of Police 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: The Town of Winterville Code of Ordinance section 96.04 requires person(s) wishing to engage in 
activities regulated by this ordinance to acquire a specific permit approved by the Chief of Police, or his 
designee. A permit granted under this section requires an administration fee of fifteen dollars ($15.00). The 
Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee is requesting exemption from this fee. 

Action Requested: Approve. 

Attachment: Parade Route. 

Prepared By: Christopher L. Williams, Chief of Police Date: 7/26/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/1/2023 ☒ TM: 8/1/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/1/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

The code of ordinance requires all organizations that wish to hold a parade submit information describing the 

route, responsible persons and their contact numbers. The Town Council must approve the issuance of the 

permit based on this and any other information they request. The Winterville Watermelon Festival committee 

is expected to submit a parade application in the immediate future to the Chief of Police. The Watermelon 

Festival: Chairman is Heather Jackson and the parade contact person is Rebecca Caveness. The date of 

the parade is Saturday, August 26, 2023 at 10 am. The lineup will begin at 9:00 am and will end at 

approximately 11:00 am. The parade route is attached. 

Budgetary Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Town Council approval of the Parade Permit Fee Waiver. 

 

68



69



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023 

Presenter: Christopher L. Williams, Interim Chief of Police 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Approval of Request from the Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee to Limit the use of the 
Parking lot at the Winterville Recreation Park and Request a Change in Traffic Patterns from August 24th-
27th, 2023 in support of the 2023 Watermelon Festival. 

Action Requested: Approve. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Christopher L. Williams, Interim Chief of Police Date: 7/26/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/1/2023 ☒ TM: 8/1/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/1/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

The Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee request that the parking lot located at the Winterville 
Recreation Park be utilized for parking during the festival for the following: 

➢ Handicapped, VIP, Employee, Bands, Vendors, Emergency Services, and other Festival staff. 
 

Additionally, the Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee and the Chief of Police request a change in the 
following traffic patterns to help ensure public safety: 
 

Sylvania Street- West bound vehicular traffic only from Ange Street to Church Street, and East bound 
pedestrian traffic only from Church Street to Ange Street. 

➢ Friday, August 25th 4:00pm until 12:00am. 
➢ Saturday, August 26th 3:00pm until 12:00am. 

 

Division Street- From Church Street to Park entrance.  
➢ Closed Thursday, August 25th at 4:00pm until 12:00am. 
➢ Closed Friday, August 26th at 4:00pm until 12:00am. 
➢ Closed Saturday, August 27th at 8:00am until 12:00am. 

 

Barrel Street – From Ange Street to Forbes Street. 
➢ No parking on south side of street during festival hours. 
➢ No parking on south side of street during festival hours. 

 

Windmill Street – From Ange Street to Forbes Street. 
➢ No parking on south side of street during festival hours. 

 

Gregory Lane- No parking in this cul-de-sac on street during festival hours. 
 

No parking on west side of Ange street from Blount street to Sylvania street. 
 

* Note: Access to private residences on closed streets available by permits. 

To promote optimum traffic flow and public safety, changes to the Watermelon Festival Committee’s request 

may be altered to accommodate Festival requirements. 

Budgetary Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Town Council approval of the Parking and Traffic Pattern changes. 

 70



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023 

Presenter: Christopher L. Williams, Chief of Police 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Approval of Request from the Watermelon Festival Committee to Suspend the Winterville Park 
Hours Limitation for August 24 - 27, 2023. 

Action Requested: Approve. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Christopher L. Williams, Chief of Police Date: 7/26/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 7/31/2023 ☒ TM: 8/1/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/1/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town of Winterville’s policy states that the Winterville Recreation Park may not be used after the hours 

of 10:30 pm. The Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee requests that this policy be suspended for the 

2023 Winterville Watermelon Festival to be held August 24 - 27, 2023. 

Budgetary Impact: None.. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Town Council approve Suspend Park Hours Limitation. 

 

71



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023 

Presenter: Christopher L. Williams, Interim Chief of Police 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Approval of Request from the Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee for the Placement of 
Signs and Banners on Town Property and Public Right-of-Ways. 

Action Requested: Approve. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Christopher L. Williams, Interim Chief of Police Date: 7/26/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/1/2023 ☒ TM: 8/1/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/1/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

The Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee requests approval for the placement of Signs and Banners 

on town property and along public right-of-way announcing the location and times for the upcoming 2023 

Watermelon Festival. The signs will begin being erected on or about August 7, 2023. 

Budgetary Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Town Council approve the Placement of Signs and Banners. 

 

72



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023 

Presenter: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks and Recreation 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Request from the Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee for use of Parks and Recreation 
Bathroom facilities from August 24, 2023 through August 27, 2023. 

Action Requested: Approve. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks and Recreation Date: 7/26/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/1/2023 ☒ TM: 8/1/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/1/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

The Winterville Watermelon Festival Committee has requested the use of all bathrooms, two (2) men’s and 

two (2) women’s, at the Winterville Recreation Park during the Watermelon Festival. The scheduled request 

is as follows: 

8/24/2023 – 5 pm to 11 pm 

8/25/2023 – 5 pm to 11 pm 

8/26/2023 – 8 am to 11 pm 

8/27/2023 – 12 pm to 7 pm 

The Festival Committee will provide all paper products and they will hire and provide janitorial services to 

keep the bathrooms clean during these times. 

Recreation Staff has discussed this issue with the Watermelon Festival Committee. Staff requests approval 

of the Committee’s Request. 

Budgetary Impact: Cost of water and electricity used during the Festival Period. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Town Council approve Use of Bathroom Facilities. 

 

73



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023 

Presenter: Christopher L. Williams, Interim Chief of Police 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: The Watermelon Festival Committee is requesting an exemption from the Noise Ordinance 
application and any associated permit application and administrative fees Festival concerts or other 
associated festival events. 

Action Requested: Approve. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Christopher L. Williams, Interim Chief of Police Date: 7/26/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/1/2023 ☒ TM: 8/1/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/1/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town of Winterville Code of Ordinance section 96.04 requires person(s) wishing to engage in activities 

regulated by this ordinance to acquire a specific permit approved by the Chief of Police, or his designee. A 

permit granted under this section requires an administration fee of fifteen dollars ($15.00). The Winterville 

Watermelon Festival Committee is requesting exemption from this fee. 

Budgetary Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Town Council approval of the Parade Permit Fee Waiver. 

 

74



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Safe Routes to School Grant Fund Ordinance. 

Action Requested: Approve the Grant Budget Ordinance. 

Attachment: Budget Ordinance 23-O-081. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager Date: 8/1/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/1/2023 ☒ TM: 8/1/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/1/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

This ordinance establishes the fund for the operation of the grant received. The Town received the Safe 

Routes to School grant in the amount of $167,485. Of this grant, $133,988 is from the NCDOT. The 

remaining funds are the local match required in the amount of $33,497. 

This is a two-year grant and is designed to establish programs and events that will promote the need to 

provide safe routes to school for pedestrians. 

Budgetary Impact: The amount of this Grant Budget Ordinance is $167,485.. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of  the Grant Budget Ordinance. 

 

75



23-O-081 

 

TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 
BUDGET ORDINANCE 

SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL GRANT FUND 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina, that pursuant to 
Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following grant project 
ordinance is hereby adopted: 

Section 1: The grant authorization is for the implementation of the Safe Routes to School Program in 
the Town of Winterville. Funding for this project is provided by grant proceeds from the Federal 
Government in the form of ARP (American Recovery Plan) funds and then to the State of North 
Carolina as a pass through. 

Section 2: The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 

Operations – Administration $167,988 

 $167,988 

Section 3: The following revenue is anticipated to be available for this project: 

Grant Funding –NCDOT Proceeds $133,988 

Local Match – Town Contribution $33,497 

 $167,988 

Section 4: The Finance Officer is hereby directed to maintain within the Grant Fund sufficient detailed 
accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the grant guidelines. 

Section 5: Funds may be provided from the General Fund for the purpose of supplementing the funds 
provided from the Federal and State Governments.  

Section 6: Funds may be combined with additional funds considered to be eligible from the State of 
North Carolina. The combined funds can be used to leverage the two sources of funding to increase the 
scope of the project. 

Section 7: The Finance Director is directed to report, on a monthly basis, the financial status of each 
project element in Section 2 and on the total revenues received or claimed. 

Section 8: The Town management has the ability to amend the budget at the line item level as long as 
the amendments do not increase or decrease the overall budget total for the fund. Any changes to the 
fund total will require Town Council approval. 

Section 9: Copies of this grant ordinance shall be furnished to the Town Clerk, Governing Board, 
Finance Director, and Town Manager (Budget Officer) to be kept on file by them for their direction in the 
disbursement of funds. 
 

Adopted this 7th day of August 2023 
 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

76



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Resolution of Reimbursement. 

Action Requested: Approve the Resolution. 

Attachment: Resolution 23-R-081 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager Date: 8/1/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/1/2023 ☒ TM: 8/1/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/1/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

The resolution of reimbursement allows the Town to begin making purchases while funding sources are 

being obtained. This is a standard procedure that is often used to keep projects on schedule. It is also 

required by the IRS for this type of situation. The amount being finance is $551,645. Items being purchased 

are: Two Police Vehicles, Sewer Jeter Trailer, 6-inch bypass pump, Knuckle Boom Truck, Public Works 

Work Truck, Kubota Tractor, and Commercial Lawn Mower. 

Budgetary Impact: Does not change the budget. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of Resolution 23-R-081. 

 

77



23-R-081 

Resolution 
Town of Winterville, North Carolina 

Declaration of Official Intent to Reimburse 
 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Town of Winterville, NC does hereby adopt the 
following declaration (the “Declaration”) of official intent to reimburse. 
 

This declaration (the “Declaration”) is made pursuant to the requirements of the United 
States Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2 and is intended to constitute a Declaration of 
Official Intent to Reimburse under such Treasury Regulations Section. 
 

The Undersigned is authorized to declare the official intent of the Town of Winterville, 
North Carolina (the “Issuer”) with respect to the matters contained herein. 
 

1. Expenditures to be Incurred. The Issuer has incurring expenditures (the 
“expenditures”) for the purchase Two Police Vehicles, Sewer Jeter Trailer, 6 inch 
bypass pump, Knuckle Boom Truck, and a Public Works Work Truck, Kubota 
Tractor, Commercial Lawn Mower.  

 
2. Plan of Finance. The Insurer intends to finance the cost of the project with the 

proceeds of debt to be issued by the Issuer (the “Borrowing”) the interest on which is 
to be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

 
3. Maximum Principle Amount of Debt to be Issued. The maximum principle 

amount of the borrowing to be incurred by the Issuer to finance the equipment and 
vehicles is $551,645. 

 
4. Declaration of Official Intent to Reimburse. The issuer hereby declares its official 

intent to reimburse itself with the proceeds of the Borrowing for any of the 
Expenditures incurred by its prior to the issuance of the Borrowing. 

 
Adopted this the 7th day of August 2023 

 
 
 
   
 Richard E. Hines, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

78



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Approval to use Sourcewell Purchasing Cooperative. 

Action Requested: Authorizing Staff to Utilize the Sourcewell Purchasing Cooperative for the Purchase of 
Public Works Equipment. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager Date: 8/1/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/1/2023 ☒ TM: 8/1/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/1/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

The 2023/2024 Budget allocated funds for the purchase of new equipment for the Public Works Dept. Staff 

received quotes for the requested equipment. The quotes were secured using the purchasing cooperative, 

Sourcewell, rather than the state purchasing contract. The vendors supplying the quotes, were awarded the 

sales contracts through Sourcewell’s competitive bidding process. Similar to the award of state purchasing 

contracts, the annual purchasing contract is only received after the cooperative performs a thorough vetting 

process of several vendors. This process is similar to the state contract process but is performed for national 

scale purchases versus state level. 

This purchasing process is allowed by NCGS as long as the Town Council agrees to accept their competitive 

bid process and forgoing the Town’s current purchasing policy. 

Budgetary Impact: None at this time.  Actual costs for each piece of equipment will be presented to Council 
separately. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends authorization to utilize the purchasing contracts established by 
Sourcewell for the acquisition of the previously approved Public Works Department equipment approval of 
Resolution 23-R-081. 

 

79



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Appointment of Human Relations Board Members. 

Action Requested: Appointment of Members to the Human Relations Board. 

Attachment: Members and vacancies, Applications on File. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 7/26/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/1/2023 ☒ TM: 8/1/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/1/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

Human Relations Board 

The Human Relations Board consists of six (6) Members. At the present time there are three (3) vacancies. 

There are three (3) appointments that need to be made to the Winterville Human Relations Board. Please 

see the attached document which will denote which positions need to be filled and by whom. 

Also, attached are all applications on file that indicated the Human Relations Board as a choice. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Appointment members as noted to the Human Relations Board. 

 

80



Updated: 05/26/2023 

Winterville Human Relations Board 

 

The Winterville Human Relations Board (WHRB) shall consist of six (6) members appointed by the Town Council. 

The term of office for each WHRB member shall be as follows: 
• All members will serve a two-year staggered term; 
• No member shall serve more than three (3) consecutive terms; 
• Each member shall hold office until the qualification and appointment of his/her successor or until one 

(1) year has lapsed since the expiration of the term for which the member was appointed, which first 
occurs; and 

• In order to establish staggered terms, the original voting members of the WHRB shall be appointed as 
follows: 

• Two members for a one-year term. 
• Two members for a two-year term. 
• Two members for a three-year term. 
• Thereafter, each newly appointed voting member shall serve for a two-year term. 

Town Council shall appoint one (1) member of Town Council to act as the liaison to the WHRB. The appointed 
liaison shall attend the WHRB meetings and keep Town Council informed as to the activities of the WHRB. The 
Town Clerk shall serve as the Staff liaison to the WHRB. 

 

 
1. Alton Wadford (Chair) [Moore] 

227 Blount Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 
Phone: (252) 378-5344 
altonwadford@gmail.com  
Term Expires: 06/30/2025 
 

2. Dr. Brandy Harrell Resigned [Roberson] 
PO Box 173 
Winterville, NC 28590 
Phone: (252) 371-1600 
brandyh@journeystosuccess.org  
Term Expires: 06/30/2025 
 

3. Shantel Hawkins (Vice Chair) [Hines] 
2456 Mill Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 
Phone: (252) 327-0399 
hawkshantel@gmail.com  
Term Expires: 06/30/2024 
 

4. Paul Rice [Rice] 
161 Vernon White Road 
Winterville, NC 28590 
Phone: (252) 514-5917 
paul.rice@wintervillenc.com  
Term Expires: 06/30/2024 

 
5. Tyanna Hagans Resigned [Moye] 

302 Alyssum Place 
Winterville, NC 28590 
Phone: 
tyannahagans53@gmail.com  
Term Expires: 06/30/2023 
 

6. Ryan Willhite [Smith/Harrell] 
PO Box 1459 
2593 Railroad Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 
Phone: (252) 756-2221 ext. 2395 
ryan.willhite@wintervillenc.com  
Term Expires: 06/30/2023 

  

• Veronica Roberson 
Council Liaison 
226 Gardner Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 
Phone: (252) 355-5053 
veronica.roberson@wintervillenc.com  

 

• Donald Harvey 
Town Clerk 
PO Box 1459 
2571 Railroad Street 
Winterville, NC 28590 
Phone: (252)-756-2221 ext. 2344 
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com  
 

humanrelationsboard@wintervillenc.com 

81

mailto:altonwadford@gmail.com
mailto:brandyh@journeystosuccess.org
mailto:hawkshantel@gmail.com
mailto:paul.rice@wintervillenc.com
mailto:tyannahagans53@gmail.com
mailto:ryan.willhite@wintervillenc.com
mailto:veronica.roberson@wintervillenc.com
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com
mailto:humanrelationsboard@wintervillenc.com


Received 12/06/2021 DAH

82



Received by DAH on 1/28/2022

83



84



Received by DAH on 2/17/2022 

 85



Received by DAH on 8/29/2022

86



Received by DAH on 11/29/2022

87



88



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Award of Contract to Rivers and Associates for the development of a Sewer Master Plan. 

Action Requested: Approve award of contract with Rivers and Associates. 

Attachment: Bid Tabulation, Contract. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager Date: 7/31/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/1/2023 ☒ TM: 8/1/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/1/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

Staff formally advertised and Solicited Request for Qualification (RFQ) for engineering services. 

The RFQ was advertised in The Daily Reflector on Saturday July 1st,  2023 and it was also posted on the 

Town’s web site. 

We received two bids from qualified engineering firms.   

They were scored on the following criteria.  Qualifications and Experience (50 Points), Project Approach (30 

points), Completed Projects (20 Points). 

Rivers and Associates scored the highest among the submittals.  The Rivers and Associates have 

considerable knowledge of the Town’s sewer infrastructure and have completed several studies for the town 

already. 

Based on the analysis, staff is recommending Rivers and Associates be awarded the contract. 

This project is funded with a grant from NDDEQ. 

Budgetary Impact: Ceiling cost of $150,000. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends award of Contract to Rivers and Associates. 

 

89



Town of Winterville

Bid Tabulation

Sewer Master Plan

RFQ for Engineering Services

Company Provided Notice Requested Package Submitted Qualification Package Score

Rivers and Associates x x 100.00  

The Wooten Company x x 80.00    

90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Award of Contract to Rivers and Associates for the development of Stormwater Asset Inventory 
Assessment. 

Action Requested: Approve award of contract with Rivers and Associates for storm water asset, inventory, 
assessment AIA grant. 

Attachment: Bid Tabulation, Contract. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Assistant Town Manager Date: 8/1/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/1/2023 ☒ TM: 8/1/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/1/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

Staff formally advertised and Solicited Request for Qualification (RFQ) for engineering services. 

The RFQ was advertised in The Daily Reflector on Saturday July 1st, 2023 and it was also posted on the 

Town’s web site. 

We received five bids from qualified engineering firms.   

They were scored on the following criteria.  Qualifications and Experience (50 Points), Project Approach (30 

points), Completed Projects (20 Points). 

Rivers and Associates scored the highest among the submittals.  The Rivers and Associates have 

considerable knowledge of the Town’s stormwater infrastructure and have completed several studies for the 

town already. 

Based on the analysis, staff is recommending Rivers and Associates be awarded the contract. 

This project is funded with a grant from NCDEQ 

Budgetary Impact: Ceiling cost of $400,000. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends award of Contract to Rivers and Associates.. 

 

103



Town of Winterville

Bid Tabulation

Stormwater Asset Inventory Assessment

RFQ for Engineering Services

Company Provided Notice Requested Package Submitted Qualification Package Score

Rivers and Associates x x 90

The Wooten Company x x 80

GEI Consultants x x 80

Surveying and Mapping LLC x x 80

Tetra Tech x x 85

104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: August 7, 2023 

Presenter: Cliff McGuffin, Public Works Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Winterville Ordinance 51.07 Revision. 

Action Requested: Approve Modification of Ordinance to Night Before the day scheduled pick-up. 

Attachment: Copy of Current Ordinance 51.07. 

Prepared By: Cliff McGuffin, Public Works Director Date: 7/26/2023 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/1/2023 ☒ TM: 8/1/2023 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/1/2023 

Supporting Documentation 

Town Ordinance 51.07 states containers should be placed by the curb at or before 7:00 am on the day 

scheduled for removal. The Town website states containers should be put out the night before scheduled 

pick up which most residents do but not all. It has been noted that GFL starts running routes as early as 5:00 

am in town so some residents’ cans are being missed because they are placed out by 7:00 am. Staff 

recommends Ordinance 51.07 be modified to say the night before scheduled pick-up as the website does. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the Ordinance Modification as presented. 

 

118



119


	00_20230807_Agenda_Final
	08_01_Proclamation_Watermelon_Festival
	10_01a_Consent_Abstract_Minutes_Draftv2
	10_01b_20230605_Regular_Meeting_Minutes_DRAFT
	10_01c_20230612_Regular_Meeting_Minutes_DRAFT
	10_02a_Consent_Abstract_Budget_Amendment_23-24-01v2
	10_02b_Budget_Amendment_2023-2024-1
	10_03a_Consent_Abstract_Reedy_Branch_Farms_Final_Platv2
	10_03b_P1761-MFR 18x24  W MFR
	10_04a_Consent_Abstract_Kpmehra_Sanchez_Rezoning_Requestv2
	10_04b_Application_Kpmehra_Sanchez_Rezoning
	10_04c_Map_Kpmehra_Sanchez_Rezoning
	10_04d_Legal_Description_Kpmehra_Sanchez_Rezoning
	10_04e_Staff_Report_Kpmehra_Sanchez_Rezoning
	10_05a_Consent_Abstract_WWFC_Parade_Permit_Fee_Waiver_2023v2
	10_05a_Watermelon_Parade_Attachment
	10_05b_Consent_Abstract_WWFC_Traffic_Parking_2023v2
	10_05c_Consent_Abstract_WWFC_Park_Hours_2023v2
	10_05d_Consent_Abstract_WWFC_Signs_Banners_2023v2
	10_05e_Consent_Abstract_WWFC_Request_to_Use_Bathrooms_2023v2
	10_05f_Consent_Abstract_WWFC_Request_Noise_Permit_and_Fee_Waiver_2023v2
	10_06a_Consent_Abstract_Safe_Routes_to_School_Grantv2
	10_06b_Safe_Routes_to_School_Grant_Budget_Ordinance_23-O-081
	10_07a_Consent_Abstract_Equipment_Reimbursement_Resolutionv2
	10_07b_Equipmentment_Reimbursement_Resolution_23-R-081
	10_08a_Consent_Abstract_Sourcewell_Purchasingv2
	11_01a_Old_Abstract_Human_Relations_Appointmentsv2
	11_01b_20230526_WHRB_Members
	11_01c_20211206_Gregory_Dedra_(HRB)
	11_01c_20220128_Miller_Melanie_(RAB_HRB)
	11_01c_20220129_Bottoms_Dennis_(HRB_PZ_BA)
	11_01c_20220217_Ham_Stephanie_(RAB_HRB)
	11_01c_20220829_Bottoms_Dennis_(RAB_HRB)
	11_01c_20221129_Hill_Kathryn_(HRB)
	11_01c_20230706_Jones_Azzari_(HRB_RAB)
	12_01a_New_Abstract_Sewer_Master_Planv2
	12_01b_Bid_Tabulation_Sewer_Mater_Plan
	12_01c_Sewer Master Plan Engineering Agreement_Executed_080123
	12_02a_New_Abstract_Stormwater_Asset_Inventory_Assessmentv2
	12_02b_Bid_Tabulation_Stormwater_AIA
	12_02c_Stormwater_AIA_Engineering_Agreement_Rivers
	12_03a_New_Abstract_Sanitation Ordinance 51.07v2
	12_03b_New_Sanitation_Ordinance_51.07



